
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

綜合財務報表附註
 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)（以港幣列示）

� Material accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These f inancia l  statements have been prepared 

i n  acco rdance  w i th  a l l  app l i cab le  Hong  Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which 

col lect ive term includes al l  appl icable indiv idual 

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong 

K o n g  A c c o u n t i n g  S t a n d a r d s  ( " H K A S s " )  a n d 

Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting 

principles general ly accepted in Hong Kong and 

the requirements of  the Hong Kong Companies 

Ordinance. Material accounting pol icies adopted 

by Hong Kong Internet Registrat ion Corporat ion 

Limited ("the Company") and its subsidiary (together 

referred to as "the Group") are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certa in amendments to 

HKFRSs that  are f i rs t  e f fect ive or  ava i lab le  for 

early adoption for the current accounting period of 

the Group. Note � (c) provides information on any 

changes in accounting policies resulting from initial 

application of these developments to the extent that 

they are relevant to the Group for the current and 

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial 

statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial 
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended �� December ���� comprise the Company 

and its subsidiary.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of 

the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity 

w i t h  H K F R S s  re q u i re s  m a n a g e m e n t  t o  m a k e 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 

the application of policies and reported amounts 

of assets, l iabi l i t ies, income and expenses. The 

estimates and associated assumptions are based 

on historical experience and various other factors 

tha t  a re  be l i eved  to  be  reasonab le  under  the 

circumstances, the results of which form the basis 

of making the judgements about carrying values of 

assets and liabil it ies that are not readily apparent 

from other sources. Actual results may differ from 

these estimates.
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial 
statements (continued)

The est imates and under ly ing assumpt ions are 

re v i e w e d  o n  a n  o n g o i n g  b a s i s .  R e v i s i o n s  t o 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 

which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 

only that period, or in the period of the revision and 

future periods if the revision affects both current and 

future periods.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(i)  New and amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certa in new and 

amended HKFRSs that are first effective for 

the current accounting period of the Group. Of 

these, the following development is relevant to 

the Group's financial statements:

• Amendments to HKAS �, Presentation 

of f inancia l  statements and HKFRS 

Practice Statement �, Making materiality 

judgements: Disclosure of accounting 

policies

The amended HKFRS does not have a mater ia l 

effect on how the Group's resul ts and f inancia l 

position for the current or prior periods have been 

prepared or presented. The Group has not applied 

any new standard or interpretation that is not yet 

effective for the current accounting period.
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)  New HKICPA guidance on the 
accounting implications of the abolition 
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June ���� the Hong Kong SAR Government 

(the "Government") gazetted the Hong Kong 

E m p l o y m e n t  a n d  R e t i r e m e n t  S c h e m e s 

L e g i s l a t i o n  ( O f f s e t t i n g  A r r a n g e m e n t ) 

( A m e n d m e n t )  O r d i n a n c e  � � � �  ( t h e 

"Amendment Ordinance"), which will come into 

effect from � May ���� (the "Transition Date"). 

Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, 

an employer can no longer use any of the 

accrued benefits derived from its mandatory 

contributions to mandatory provident fund 

("MPF") scheme to reduce the long service 

payment ("LSP") in respect of an employee's 

service from the Transition Date (the abolition 

of the "offsetting mechanism"). In addition, 

the LSP in respect of the service before the 

Transition Date will be calculated based on the 

employee's monthly salary immediately before 

the Transition Date and the years of service up 

to that date.

I n  J u l y  � � � � ,  t h e  H K I C PA  p u b l i s h e d 

"Accounting implications of the abolition of the 

MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong" 

that provides accounting guidance relating 

to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition 

of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance 

indicates that entit ies may account for the 

accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF 

contributions that are expected to be used 

to reduce the LSP payable to an employee 

as deemed contributions by that employee 

towards the LSP.
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)  New HKICPA guidance on the 
accounting implications of the abolition 
of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism 
(continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the 

enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in 

June ����, it is no longer permissible to apply 

the practical expedient in paragraph ��(b) of 

HKAS �� that previously allowed such deemed 

contributions to be recognised as reduction 

of service cost (negative service cost) in the 

period the contributions were made; instead 

t hese  deemed  con t r i bu t i ons  shou ld  be 

attributed to periods of service in the same 

manner as the gross LSP benefit.

The abolition of the offsetting mechanism does 

not have a material impact on the Group's 

result and financial position.

(d) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entit ies controlled by the Group. 

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed or 

has right, to variable returns from its involvement 

with the entity and has the abil ity to affect those 

returns through i ts power over the ent i ty.  When 

assess ing whether  the  Group has  power,  on ly 

substant ive r ights (held by the Group and other 

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into 

the consolidated financial statements from the date 

that control commences until the date that control 

ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash 

flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-

group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing 

the consolidated f inancial statements. Unrealised 

losses resulting from intra-group transactions are 

e l iminated in  the same way as unrea l ised ga in 

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 

impairment.
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary 

that do not result in a loss of control are accounted 

for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments 

are made to the amounts of controll ing and non-

contro l l ing interests wi th in  consol idated equi ty 

to ref lect the change in relative interests, but no 

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or 

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is 

accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in 

that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being 

recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in 

that former subsidiary at the date when control is 

lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is 

regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of 

a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on 

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or 

joint venture.

In the Company's statement of f inancial position, 

an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less 

impairment losses.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property,  p lant  and equipment,  inc luding r ight-

of-use assets ar is ing f rom leases of  under ly ing 

property, plant and equipment (see note � ( f ) ) ,  is 

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.

�  ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(d)  ꡭ㸋⪝⺚（箜）

儗꥘㎯亦附㸋⪝⺚氳垷沠闭Ⳃ㞞
┘僎㵷舜ㄩ㜊䫞⯆垷➘僎䧞垷沠
◬佄⮛韰┾㏇綜合垷沠ꯁ泘╈鐪
丞䫞罇⹖ꪞ䫞罇垷沠氳丩갯♓⹛
佖注㵴垷沠氳闭Ⳃ⛙┘僎鐪丞り
闌◱┘僎澭鏂䮇沠

樧儗꥘㎯ㄩ㜊亦附㸋⪝⺚氳䫞⯆垷
侇䧞⭴す僗꟯附㸋⪝⺚氳鼨垷
沠⮛韰榺塝榣榟氳䷅沠䡝谱䮇㏇
䮇沠╈澭鏂㏇ㄩ㜊䫞⯆垷仼僿䢦
⟊槴僗꟯⯥附㸋⪝⺚氳♴⛰垷沠
䧞⪝⩒⧎⡭澭鏂縡塝璜ꄌ갯㏇⮤
㡐澭鏂ꄌ踅鞳榣侇樧⛼⪝⩒⧎⡭
䡝㞞鸸榫㏇⮤㡐澭鏂亦绤揩⪝
⺚䡝合揩⪝⺚氳䤸鞳侇樧⛼䡗儗

儗⪝⺚氳財務敻媲表䢦炐氳亦附㸋
⪝⺚氳䤸鞳佭䧞䡗儗峎⸼峎⡭谱䮇
䏳⪌韰

(e) 擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔
擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔ⴎ䦮燃鞫注꟯
擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔縡榣榟氳✳榫垷
鞳榣釤附註 �(f)佭♓䡗儗峎⸼
碶銷䤽艋⹖峎⡭谱䮇䏳⪌韰

꺞◎绤私註⫈畚杼僗꡿⪝⺚     ���� 䇗䈲報⼔ ��

 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)（以港幣列示）

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

綜合財務報表附註



� Material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of 

items of property, plant and equipment, less their 

estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-

l ine method over their  est imated useful  l ives as 

follows:

-  Office machinery and equipment � years

-  Furniture and fixtures � - � years

-  Network and computer hardware/ � years

  software and equipment

-  Right-of-use assets are depreciated 

  over the unexpired term of lease 

Both the useful  l i fe of  an asset and i ts residual 

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The  ca r r y i ng  amoun ts  o f  p rope r t y,  p l an t  and 

equipment are reviewed for indications of impairment 

at the end of each reporting period. An impairment 

loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying 

amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to 

which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash 

generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater 

of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in 

use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 

cash f lows are discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss 

is reversed if there has been a favourable change 

in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 

amount.

Ga ins  or  losses ar is ing f rom the re t i rement  or 

disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 

are determined as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date 

of retirement or disposal.

�  ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(e) 擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔（箜）

擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔ꯁ泘氳䤽艋佭♓泣
稘嫏㏇♓┖ꯏ銷⺎✳榫䇗꡿⪐婵ꊷ
⪭䡗儗䄖䣩ꢝ⚽銷壂⡭㞞僗
銷畁

-  鰾⪝㲝嚂㉻⹖錄⤔ � 䇗

-  ⤫⹖遫糍 �-� 䇗

-  私礙⹖꧇胖漲♭ҧ � 䇗
  鬂♭⹖錄⤔

-  ✳榫垷鞳榣亦儔㷋
  幥燃僿⪐䤽艋

儗꥘㎯僎夷䇗㴱ꞥ鞳榣氳⺎✳榫䇗
꡿⹖⪭壂⡭㞞僗

㏇夷⠕磶畁仼擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔
氳韰ꪫ⡭㏱僎逈㴱ꞥ佭⻖⭴杯峎⡭
饋霆㞞冽鞳榣䡝⪭䢦㸋氳杯ꄌ榣
榟ㄲ⛤氳韰ꪫ⡭飃鷪⪭⺎䷅㍑丩갯
⯞㏇䮇沠⪐澭鏂峎⡭谱䮇鞳榣䡝
⪭䢦㸋氳杯ꄌ榣榟ㄲ⛤氳⺎䷅㍑丩
갯佭䧞⪭⪝⩒⧎⡭峎⭴す䡗儗艃✳
榫⧎⡭⪔縖╈氳鬴냖갯㏇鍑⚽✳
榫⧎⡭侇ꯏ銷儔✿杯ꄌ孲ꄈ僎䧞
拨耉⹛佖樧侇䄬㕙㵴鞁䆸侇ꝴ⡭⹖
鞳榣攑㲋겨ꤠ氳鍑⚽氳爀⯥䤽杯曎
䤽杯舘⪭杯⡭㞞冽榫♓ꄊ㲋⺎䷅
㍑丩갯氳⚽銷⭴杯僗⮵氳闭⴫僗
꟯氳峎⡭谱䮇➘僎䲡㍑

報䊵䡝⭴す擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔ꯁ泘
䢦榣榟氳䮇沠佭♓⭴す䢦䐃堑ꯁ屻
갯艃ꯁ泘韰ꪫ⡭╯䄐갯ꄊ㲋┾亦
報䊵䡝⭴す仼㏇䮇沠⪐澭鏂
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leased assets

At incept ion of  a contract,  the Group assesses 

whether the contract is,  or contains, a lease. A 

contract is ,  or conta ins,  a lease i f  the contract 

c o n v e y s  t h e  r i g h t  t o  c o n t r o l  t h e  u s e  o f  a n 

identi f ied asset for a period of t ime in exchange 

for consideration. Control is conveyed where the 

customer has both the right to direct the use of the 

identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the 

economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

W h e r e  t h e  c o n t r a c t  c o n t a i n s  l e a s e 

component(s) and non-lease component(s), 

t he  G roup  has  e l ec ted  no t  t o  sepa ra te 

non- lease components and accounts for 

each lease component and any associated 

non- lease components as a s ing le  lease 

component for all leases.

A t  t h e  l e a s e  c o m m e n c e m e n t  d a t e ,  t h e 

Group recognises a right-of-use asset and 

a lease liability, except for short-term leases 

that have a lease term of �� months or less 

and leases of low-value assets. When the 

Group enters into a lease in respect of a 

low-value asset, the Group decides whether 

to capital ise the lease on a lease-by-lease 

basis. The lease payments associated with 

those leases which are not capital ised are 

recognised as an expense on a systematic 

basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is  capi ta l ised,  the lease 

liabil ity is initially recognised at the present 

value of the lease payments payable over 

the lease term, discounted using the interest 

rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 

be  read i l y  de te rm ined ,  us ing  a  re levan t 

i nc rementa l  bo r row ing  ra te .  A f te r  i n i t i a l 

recognit ion, the lease l iabi l i ty is measured 

a t  amor t i sed  cos t  and  in te res t  expense 

is  ca lcu la ted us ing the e ffect ive  in terest 

method. Variable lease payments that do not 

depend on an index or rate are not included 

in the measurement of the lease liability and 

hence are charged to prof i t  or loss in the 

accounting period in which they are incurred. 

�  ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(f) 燃鞫鞳榣

儗꥘㎯僎亦合硝⮤㡐榟䷞侇鍑⚽鎊
合硝佭⻖㸋燃鞫䡝ⴎ⻢燃鞫⠭合
硝憡䬷⹦♏⧎縡礢◀㏇┉夀侇ꝴ⪐
䫞⯆⺎閂⮯鞳榣✳榫氳垷⮵⯞鎊
合硝㸋燃鞫䡝ⴎ⻢燃鞫⠭㲙䢒僗
垷╚㵷⺎閂⮯鞳榣氳✳榫⹖䐍鎊✳
榫╈暢⹦䇭╲䢦僗氳祺忴䷅沠⯞
表炐䫞⯆垷䄖鮺阁

(i) ⛼憡䤖燃☕
樧合硝ⴎ⻢燃鞫鼨⮇⹖ꪞ燃
鞫鼨⮇儗꥘㎯鹢䳢┘ⶆ⮇ꪞ
燃鞫鼨⮇⹖㵩⺨燃鞫鼨⮇⹖
♴⛰꟯绤ꪞ燃鞫鼨⮇⪌韰⮛
憡䢦僗燃鞫氳ㄲ┉燃鞫鼨⮇

亦燃鞫ꝧ㡐仼僿儗꥘㎯澭
鏂✳榫垷鞳榣⹖燃鞫靷⥍
䘞燃僿憡 �� ⠕僖䡝催湿氳湿
僿燃鞫⹖⛧⧎⡭鞳榣氳燃鞫
ꢝ㛛⠭儗꥘㎯㶩⛧⧎⡭鞳
榣銬环燃鞫⯞儗꥘㎯鵅ꯁ
婋㲋佭⻖㵩燃鞫鞳儗⴫艃
儔鞳儗⴫氳燃鞫注꟯氳燃鞫
♀堑㏇燃鞫僿⪐僗硎礵㏑澭
鏂憡ꝧ䶺

樧燃鞫䄖鞳儗⴫燃鞫靷⥍
⮤塠䧞燃僿䟕♀燃鞫♀堑갯
氳杯⡭澭鏂┾䧞燃鞫╈䢦
꤬⻢氳⮵曎鞟杯䡝⠭鎊⮵
曎┘耉魌佄ꄊ㲋⯞♓注꟯
鸚㘎⠺堑⮵曎鞟杯亦⮤塠
澭鏂䏳燃鞫靷⥍䧞䶥ꊷ䡗
儗銷ꄈ縡⮵䕜ꝧ䶺⯞䫑榫
㴨꤀⮵曎嫏銷ꄈ燃鞫靷⥍
氳銷ꄈ┾┘ⴎ䦮┘❤韻䧘丩
䡝⮵曎氳⺎闭燃鞫♀堑㍕
塝⺎闭燃鞫♀堑亦⪭榣榟氳
僎銷僿ꝴ㏇䮇沠╈䣩ꢝ
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

The r ight-of-use asset recognised when a 

lease is capital ised is init ial ly measured at 

cost, which comprises the initial amount of 

the lease l iabi l i ty plus any lease payments 

made at or before the commencement date, 

and any initial direct costs incurred. Where 

app l i cab le ,  the  cos t  o f  the  r i gh t -o f -use 

assets also includes an est imate of costs 

to  d ismant le  and remove the  under l y ing 

asset or to restore the underlying asset or 

the site on which it is located, discounted 

t o  t h e i r  p re s e n t  v a l u e ,  l e s s  a n y  l e a s e 

incentives received. The right-of use asset is 

subsequently stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 

�(e)). 

The lease liability is remeasured when there 

is a change in future lease payments arising 

from a change in an index or rate, or there 

is a change in the Group's estimate of the 

amount  expected to be payable  under  a 

residual value guarantee, or there is a change 

arising from the reassessment of whether the 

Group will be reasonably certain to exercise 

a purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this 

way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 

the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, 

or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 

amount of the right-of-use asset has been 

reduced to zero. 

In the consol idated statement of f inancial 

posit ion, the current port ion of long-term 

lease liabilities is determined as the present 

value of contractual payments that are due 

to be settled within twelve months after the 

reporting period. The Group presents right-

of-use assets within the same l ine item as 

similar underlying assets and presents lease 

liabilities separately.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(f) 燃鞫鞳榣（箜）

(i) ⛼憡䤖燃☕箜
亦鞳儗⴫燃鞫侇澭鏂氳✳榫
垷鞳榣⮤塠䧞䡗儗銷ꄈ
⪭╈ⴎ䦮燃鞫靷⥍氳⮤㡐ꄌ
갯ⱶ┕亦ꝧ㡐仼僿䡝╯⯥
⛼⭴氳♴⛰燃鞫♀堑♓⹖♴
⛰䢦榣榟氳⮤㡐泣䫚䡗儗
⠭鸸榫✳榫垷鞳榣氳䡗
儗◱ⴎ䦮䥸ⷓ⹖燯ꢝ注꟯鞳
榣䡝麅⸊注꟯鞳榣䡝鎊鞳榣
䢦㏇㏑縡榣榟氳⚽銷䡗儗
䧞⪭杯⡭鞟杯┾䣩峎♴⛰䢦
䷅氳燃鞫⨣䘟✳榫垷鞳榣
⪭䏳䧞䡗儗峎⸼碶銷䤽艋
⹖峎⡭谱䮇⮛釤附註
�(e)

⠭䧘丩䡝⮵曎闭⴫䌖舜儔✿
燃鞫♀堑⭴杯闭Ⳃ䡝儗꥘
㎯ꯏ僿劯䴆Ⱂ궠⧎⡭䳸⟊䟕
♀氳⚽銷ꄌ갯榣榟闭⴫䡝
㶩儗꥘㎯佭⻖合杼澭㲋㵩车
✳頇鞙箜燃䡝磚塛鹢䳢垷
氳僗꟯ꄆ亏鍑⚽榣榟闭⴫
⯞燃鞫靷⥍㵩ꄆ亏銷ꄈ
⠭♓塝亡䌋ꄆ亏銷ꄈ燃鞫靷
⥍⯞䟕樧㵴✳榫垷鞳榣氳
韰ꪫ⡭鶡车注䟕鐪丞縡⠭
✳榫垷鞳榣氳韰ꪫ⡭䄖鐪峎
舘ꦼ⯞䟕亦䮇沠⮛韰

亦綜合財務敻媲表╈ꝏ僿
燃鞫靷⥍樧⯥鼨⮇佭♓報⼔
僿䏳ⶇ◅⠕僖⪐⨑♀氳合硝
♀堑杯⡭ꄊ㲋儗꥘㎯亦
⛍注꟯鞳榣氳注⺱ꯁ泘┖
⮛✳榫垷鞳榣┾⮇⮯⮛炐
燃鞫靷⥍
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(g) Trade and other receivables 

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an 

unconditional right to receive consideration. A right 

to receive consideration is unconditional if only the 

passage of time is required before payment of that 

consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised 

before the Group has an uncondi t ional  r ight  to 

receive consideration, the amount is presented as a 

contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method less allowance for credit 

losses as determined below:

The loss  a l lowance is  measured at  an amount 

equal to l i fetime expected credit losses ("ECLs"), 

which are those losses that are expected to occur 

over the expected l i fe of  the t rade receivables. 

The loss allowance is estimated using a provision 

matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss 

experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to 

the debtors and an assessment of both the current 

and forecast general economic condit ions at the 

reporting date.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with 

any changes recognised as an impairment gain 

or  loss in  prof i t  or  loss.  The Group recognises 

an impairment gain or loss with a corresponding 

adjustment to the carry ing amount of trade and 

other receivables through a loss allowance account.

The gross carry ing amount of a trade debtor or 

other receivable is written off (either partially or in 

full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect 

of recovery. This is general ly the case when the 

Group determines that the debtor does not have 

assets or sources of income that could generate 

sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject 

to the write-off.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(g)  鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑

䟕䷅堑ꯁ亦儗꥘㎯䳕僗扝卋♭䷅⹦
♏⧎╯垷⮵侇澭鏂㞞冽㏇䶺♀鎊
♏⧎⮽僿╯⯥⥪ꧏ釒祺鷪┉夀侇ꝴ
⯞釲憡暢䐃鎊♏⧎氳垷⮵佭扝卋♭
氳㞞冽㏇儗꥘㎯僗垷扝卋♭䫚䷅
♏⧎╯⯥澭鏂䷅⪌⯞鎊ꄌ갯⛼憡
合硝鞳榣⮛報

䟕䷅堑ꯁ䫑榫㴨꤀⮵曎嫏峎⸼⟔鞚
谱䮇䲡⤔䧞䶥ꊷ䡗儗⮛韰냇
㞞┖

谱䮇䲡⤔氳銷畁ꄌ갯璣亦姧╦ꯏ僿
⟔鞚谱䮇րꯏ僿⟔鞚谱䮇ց
ⷊꯏ僿㏇鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑ꯏ銷✳榫䇗
꡿⪐氪榟氳䮇㜊谱䮇䲡⤔╤✳榫
㓹亦儗꥘㎯塽⺒⟔鞚谱䮇祺꿨氳䲡
⤔ꢛ⚽銷┾劯䴆⥍務☕攑㲋㍕
碜⛼⭴鐪丞┾亦報⼔仼僿鍑⚽樧
⯥⹖ꯏ峮┉芙祺忴敻媲

ꯏ僿⟔鞚谱䮇㏇夷⠕磶畁仼ꄆ亏
銷ꄈ♴⛰闭催㏱亦䮇沠╈澭鏂
憡峎⡭䮇沠儗꥘㎯澭鏂峎⡭䮇
沠┾鵡鷪谱䮇䲡⤔韰䢒㵴鞥佄
䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑氳韰ꪫ⡭
⛼⭴注䟕鐪丞

鞥佄⥍務☕䡝⪭☾䟕䷅堑氳韰ꪫ竬
갯㏇扝㴨꤀䷅㍑⺎耉氳䗯媲┖鼨
⮇䡝鼨◀♓婵ꊷ儗꥘㎯㏇婋
㲋婵ꊷꄌ갯侇鵡䅻♓塝亡䌋澭㲋⥍
務☕┾扝⺎榣榟餉㛭杯ꄌ孲ꄈ♓⨑
麅婵ꊷꄌ갯氳鞳榣䡝䷅⪌✿嶏
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other payables and contract liabilities

(i) Other payables 

Other payables are initially recognised at fair 

value and subsequently stated at amortised 

cost unless the effect of discounting would 

be immaterial, in which case they are stated 

at cost.

(ii) Contract liabilities

A contract l iabi l i ty is recognised when the 

customer pays non-refundable consideration 

before the Group recogn ises the re la ted 

revenue (see note �(m)). A contract l iabil ity 

wou ld  a l so  be  recogn i sed  i f  t he  G roup 

has an uncondit ional r ight to receive non-

refundable consideration before the Group 

recogn ises  the  re la ted revenue.  In  such 

cases, a corresponding receivable would be 

recognised (see note �(g)).

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank 

and on hand, demand deposits with banks and 

other f inancial institutions, and short-term, highly 

liquid investments that are readily convertible into 

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been 

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(j) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and 
contributions to defined contribution 
retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are expensed 

as the related service is provided. A liability 

is recognised for the amount expected to 

be paid if the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligation to pay this amount 

as  a  resu l t  o f  pas t  se rv i ce  p rov ided  by 

the employee and the ob l igat ion can be 

estimated reliably.

Ob l iga t ions  fo r  cont r ibu t ions  to  de f ined 

contribution retirement plans are expensed 

as the related service is provided.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(h) ⪭☾䟕♀堑⹖⺭硝靷⥍

(i) ⪭☾䟕♀堑
⪭☾䟕♀堑꺙⩝䧞⪝⩒⧎⡭
澭鏂⪭䏳䧞䶥ꊷ䡗儗⪌韰
䘞⠭鞟杯䏆ꮷ┾┘ꄆ㛻⯞
䧞䡗儗⪌韰

(ii) 合硝靷⥍
樧㲙䢒㏇儗꥘㎯澭鏂注꟯䷅
⪌⯥䶺♀┘⺎鴛麅氳♏⧎
侇合硝靷⥍ⷊ澭鏂釤附
註 �(m)⠭儗꥘㎯亦澭鏂
注꟯䷅⪌⯥䳕僗扝卋♭䫚䷅
┘⺎鴛麅⧎堑╯垷⮵⯞合
硝靷⥍◱◀澭鏂㏇塝䗯媲
┖䟕澭鏂注䟕氳䟕䷅堑釤
附註 �(g)

(i) 杯ꄌ⹖杯ꄌ璣⧎擻
杯ꄌ⹖杯ꄌ璣⧎擻ⴎ䦮ꉐ车㰇堑⹖
䣆꯽杯ꄌ㰇䷒亦ꉐ车⹖⪭☾財務
嚂啶氳孨僿㰇堑♓⹖湿僿⹖냖孲
Ⳃ䓪氳䤸鞳鎊璣䤸鞳⺎♓ꤛ侇䬷
畁憡䄖湳氳杯ꄌ갯┦⧎⡭闭Ⳃ亡ꪫ
氳겨ꤠ┘㛻┾㏇頇⪌䏳└⠕僖⪐
⮽僿

(j) ⧀⿦焱⮵

(i)  湿僿⧀⿦焱⮵⹖㍾㲋筤
堑鴛⚔銷ⱁ氳❠堑

湿僿⧀⿦焱⮵㏇䬠❠注꟯僜
務侇僎鋘憡鞞榫㞞冽㍕⧀
⿦鷪⸼䬠❠氳僜務儗꥘㎯
泘⯥僗嫏䏱䡝䫠㲋紶務䶺♀
ꯏ銷釒䶺♀氳ꄌ갯縡┦鎊
紶務⺎♓⺎ꪥ㏑⚽畁⯞澭
鏂憡靷⥍

㍾㲋筤堑鴛⚔銷樔氳筤堑
紶務㏇䬠❠注꟯僜務侇鋘
憡鞞榫
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(j) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Defined benefit plan obligations – long 
service payment ("LSP") under the 
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

The Group's net  ob l igat ion in  respect  of 

defined benefit plans is calculated separately 

for each plan by estimating the amount of 

future benefit that employees have earned in 

the current and prior periods and discounting 

t h a t  a m o u n t .  F o r  L S P  o b l i g a t i o n s ,  t h e 

e s t i m a t e d  a m o u n t  o f  f u t u r e  b e n e f i t  i s 

determined a f ter  deduct ing the negat ive 

service cost arising from the accrued benefits 

derived from the Group's MPF contributions 

that have been vested with employees, which 

are deemed to be contr ibut ions f rom the 

relevant employees. 

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit 

plans are recognised immediately in OCI. Net 

interest expense and other expenses related 

to defined benefit plans are recognised in 

profit or loss.

(k) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and 

movements in deferred tax assets and l iabi l i t ies. 

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets 

and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except 

to the extent that they relate to items recognised 

i n  o the r  comprehens i ve  i ncome o r  d i rec t l y  i n 

equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax 

are recognised in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is  the expected tax payable on the 

taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 

of previous years.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(j) ⧀⿦焱⮵（箜）

(ii)  㲋紶焱⮵銷ⱁ⥍務˒
վ꺞⧀⤼卋❆տ釨㲋
氳ꝏ僿僜務ꄌLSP
儗꥘㎯艃槡㲋焱⮵銷ⱁ僗꟯
氳⥍務屻갯䧞夷ꯁ銷ⱁ⮇⮯
銷畁亡嫏佭⚽畁⿦䄄㏇樧
⯥⽰♓䏢僿ꝴ䢦頄⹦氳儔✿
焱⮵ꄌ갯┾㵩鎊ꄌ갯䤽杯
㶩ꝏ僿僜務銷ⱁ氳紶務縡
銨儔✿焱⮵氳⚽銷ꄌ갯佭
㏇䣩ꢝ儗꥘㎯氳䍛犉ꄌ❠堑
榣榟氳䟕銷焱⮵䢦榣榟氳靷
僜務䡗儗䏳澭㲋氳鵞◙❠
堑䄖塾㸋亦⧀⿦┾逈釲憡
注꟯⧀⿦氳❠堑

槡㲋焱⮵銷ⱁ榣榟氳ꄆ亏銷
ꄈ环ⷊ㏇䮇沠表╈澭鏂艃
槡㲋焱⮵銷ⱁ僗꟯氳屻⮵䕜
䶺⭴⽰⪭☾䶺⭴㏇䮇沠╈澭
鏂

(k) 䢦䐃爀
儗䇗䈲䢦䐃爀ⴎ䦮儗僿爀ꯁ⹖鸚䋟
爀ꯁ鞳榣艃靷⥍氳闭Ⳃ儗僿爀ꯁ
⹖鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣艃靷⥍氳闭Ⳃ㏱㏇
䮇沠⪐澭鏂⛙㏇⪭☾ꪫ䷅沠䡝
泣䫚㏇垷沠╈澭鏂氳注꟯ꯁ泘⯞
注꟯爀堑⮇⮯㏇⪭☾ꪫ䷅沠䡝泣
䫚㏇垷沠╈澭鏂

儗僿爀ꯁ佭䧞儗䇗䈲䟕爀䢦䐃劯
䴆䄖㓵车䡝㏇磶畁仼㴨韭┕䄖㓵车
氳爀曎銷畁氳ꯏ僿䟕♀爀ꯁⱶ┕
♓䏢䇗䈲䟕♀爀ꯁ氳♴⛰鐪丞
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(k) Income tax (continued)

De fe r red  t ax  asse t s  and  l i ab i l i t i e s  a r i se  f rom 

deduct ib le  and  taxab le  tempora ry  d i f f e rences 

respect ive ly,  being the di fferences between the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 

reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred 

tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and 

unused tax credits. Apart from differences which 

arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, 

all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets 

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits will be available against which the asset can 

be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured 

based on the expected manner of real isat ion or 

settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and 

liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred 

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(l) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provis ions are recognised for other l iabi l i t ies of 

uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a 

legal or constructive obligation arising as a result 

o f  a  past  event ,  i t  i s  probab le  that  an out f low 

of  economic benef i ts  wi l l  be requ i red to set t le 

the  ob l i ga t ion  and  a  re l i ab le  es t imate  can  be 

made. Where the time value of money is material, 

provisions are stated at the present value of the 

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic 

benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 

estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a 

contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow 

of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, 

whose ex is tence wi l l  on ly  be conf i rmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 

events are also disclosed as contingent l iabil it ies 

un less  the  p robab i l i t y  o f  ou t f low o f  economic 

benefits is remote.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(k) 䢦䐃爀（箜）

鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣艃靷⥍⮇⮯榺⺎䥡䣩
⹖䟕爀倭侇䓪䄐樟榣榟倭侇䓪䄐
樟佭䧘鞳榣艃靷⥍㏇財務報表┕氳
韰ꪫꄌ갯饇鎊璣鞳榣艃靷⥍氳銷爀
㓹灅氳䄐樟鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣▉⺎♓
榺儔⮵榫爀務谱䮇⹖儔⮵榫爀堑䥡
峎榣榟ꢝ▽⮤㡐澭鏂氳鞳榣⹖靷
⥍榣榟氳䄐樟㛛䢦僗鸚䋟爀ꯁ靷
⥍⹖䢦僗鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣⥪꡿亦僗
⺎耉䐃♓⮵榫✿䥡䣩儔✿⺎耉⹦䐃
氳䟕爀嶯⮵氳鼨⮇㏱◀♓澭鏂

䄖澭鏂鸚䋟爀갯佭䧞拨鞳榣艃靷⥍
韰ꪫꄌ갯氳ꯏ僿㴨杯䡝岳⨑亡䌋
劯䴆䄖㓵车䡝㏇磶畁仼㴨韭┕䄖㓵
车氳爀曎銷ꄈ鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣艃靷
⥍㏱┘䤽杯銷畁

(l) 䲡⤔⹖䡝僗靷⥍
㞞冽儗꥘㎯ꯄ㶩䄖氪榟氳◄♭䤖䳸
嫏䏱䡝䫠㲋鞊♴縡㷿车鞊♴ꯏ僿
僎㵷舜祺忴䷞沠㛛孲㏇⺎♓⛼⭴
⺎ꪥ氳⚽銷侇儗꥘㎯➘僎㶩鎊侇
ꝴ䡝丩갯┘澭㲋氳⪭☾靷⥍澭鏂䲡
⤔㞞冽鞁䆸侇ꝴ⡭ꄆ㛻⯞䲡⤔
䧞ꯏ銷ꯄ㶩㷿车鎊紶務䢦ꧏ䶺⭴氳
杯⡭⮛韰

㞞冽祺忴䷞沠㛛孲氳⺎耉䓪鬴⛧
䡝佭扝嫏㵴僗꟯丩갯⛼⭴⺎ꪥ氳⚽
銷➘僎䥑꨾憡䡝僗靷⥍⛙祺忴
䷞沠㛛孲氳⺎耉䓪哗⛧⯞ꢝ㛛㞞
冽儗⪝⺚氳紶務ꯄ釲╲切㲄䡝㛡㲄
儔✿◄♭佭⻖氪榟䣉耉澭㲋佭⻖㰇
㏇◱僎䥑꨾憡䡝僗靷⥍⛙祺忴
䷞沠㛛孲氳⺎耉䓪哗⛧⯞ꢝ㛛
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(m) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it 
arises from the provision of services in the ordinary 
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service 
is transferred to the customer at the amount of 
promised cons idera t ion  to  wh ich the  Group is 
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts 
collected on the behalf of third parties.

Further detai ls of the Group's revenue and other 
income recognition policies are as follows: 

(i) Registration fees income

Reg is t ra t i on  f ees  i ncome i s  recogn i sed 
over t ime on a straight-l ine basis over the 
reg is t ra t ion  pe r iod  o f  one  to  ten  yea rs . 
Fees received relating to future periods are 
classi f ied as deferred registrat ion income 
in the consol idated statement of f inancial 

position.

(ii) Service fees income

Service fees income is recognised based on 
the performance obligation identified in the 

contract with customers.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues 
under the effective interest method using the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of financial position 
initially when there is reasonable assurance 
that they will be received and that the Group 
will comply with the conditions attaching to 
them. Grants that compensate the Group for 
expenses incurred are recognised as income 
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the 
same per iods in  which the expenses are 
incurred or deducted in reporting the related 
expense. 

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(m) ䷅⪌⹖⪭☾䷅⪌

樧儗꥘㎯亦⪭仼䅻哅務鷪╈䬠❠
僜務榣榟䷅⪌侇儗꥘㎯㵩塝⮇
憡揩哅갯

䷅⪌亦僜務䫞⯆垷鮺燯舘㲙䢒┦儗
꥘㎯ꯏ僿暢䐃䤖钱♏⧎侇澭鏂䘞
┘ⴎ䦮♏表瑮└亡䷅⹦氳ꄌ갯

僗꟯儗꥘㎯䷅⪌⹖⪭☾䷅⪌澭鏂䷓
瓁氳鶡┉塠鎌䗯㞞┖

(i) 註⫈鞞䷅⪌
註⫈鞞䷅⪌㏇┉舘ⶇ䇗氳註
⫈僿⪐♓泣稘嫏ꤛ侇ꝴ澭
鏂䷅⮽氳艃儔✿僿ꝴ僗꟯
氳鞞榫㏇綜合財務敻媲表╈
塾憡鸚䋟註⫈䷅⪌

(ii) 僜務鞞䷅⪌
僜務鞞䷅⪌劯䴆艃㲙䢒皤銬氳
合硝╈澭㲋氳㷿硝紶務澭鏂

(iii) ⮵䕜䷅⪌
⮵䕜䷅⪌♓㴨꤀⮵曎嫏䧞䟕
銷㓹嶗䫑榫㵩ꄌ踅鞳榣ꯏ
銷䇗僿╯⚽銷儔✿杯ꄌ䷅⪌
嶗澭鞟杯舘ꄌ踅鞳榣竬韰ꪫ
⡭澭鏂

(iv) ䷓䈢適Ⲃ
䷓䈢適Ⲃ㵩亦䷅⮽合杼⟊镜
⹖儗꥘㎯㵩瑟合附䅸卋♭
侇亦綜合財務敻媲表⮤塠
澭鏂適⨑儗꥘㎯䢦榣榟ꝧ
䶺氳適Ⲃ亦報⼔注꟯ꝧ䶺
侇榣榟䡝䣩ꢝꝧ䶺氳注⺱僿
ꝴ䧞硎礵㓹嶗㏇䮇沠⪐澭鏂
憡䷅⪌
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(n) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are 

t rans lated at  the fore ign exchange rates ru l ing 

at  the t ransact ion dates.  Monetary  assets  and 

l iabi l i t ies denominated in foreign currencies and 

non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are 

translated at the foreign exchange rates rul ing at 

the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and 

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

(o) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that 
person's family, is related to the Group 
if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the 

Group;

(ii) has  s ign i f i can t  i n f l uence  ove r  the 

Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management 

personnel of the Group or the Group's 

parent.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(n) 㛛幣䬷畁

䇗⪐氳㛛䆸◬佄䧞◬佄仼氳㛛䆸ⵜ
曎䬷畁♓㛛䆸憡ㄲ⛤氳鞁䆸鞳榣
⹖靷⥍⹖♓㛛䆸憡ㄲ⛤┾䧞⪝⩒⧎
⡭⮛韰氳ꪞ鞁䆸鞳榣⹖靷⥍⯞䧞
磶畁仼氳㛛䆸ⵜ曎䬷畁ⵜ⩣䷅沠
⹖谱䮇亦䮇沠⪐澭鏂

(o)  ꟯绤亡

(a) 㞞㸋♓┖☕㚖ⷊ鎊☕
㚖䡝鎊☕㚖氳鲥鈓佭儗
꥘㎯氳꟯绤亡
(i) 䫞⯆䡝⪦⺱䫞⯆儗꥘

㎯

(ii) 㵴儗꥘㎯僗ꄆ㛻氳
䏆ꮷⱱ䡝

(iii) 佭儗꥘㎯䡝儗꥘㎯头
⪝⺚氳꟯ꐷ畚杼☕⿦
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� Material accounting policies (continued)

(o) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any 
of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members 

of the same group (which means that 

each parent ,  subsid iary and fe l low 

subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One ent i ty  is  an assoc iate or  jo int 

ven tu re  o f  the  o the r  en t i t y  (o r  an 

associate or joint venture of a member 

of a group of which the other entity is 

a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the 

same third party.

(iv) One  en t i t y  i s  a  j o i n t  ven tu re  o f  a 

third entity and the other entity is an 

associate of the third entity.

(v) The  en t i t y  i s  a  pos t - emp loy men t 

b e n e f i t  p l a n  f o r  t h e  b e n e f i t  o f 

employees of either the Group or an 

entity related to the Group.

(vi) The  en t i t y  i s  con t ro l l ed  o r  j o i n t l y 

controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A  p e r s o n  i d e n t i f i e d  i n  ( a ) ( i )  h a s 

significant influence over the entity or 

is a member of the key management 

personnel of the entity (or of a parent 

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group 

of  which i t  is  a  par t ,  prov ides key 

management personnel  serv ices to 

the Group or the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those 

family members who may be expected to influence, 

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings 

with the entity.

� ꄆ㛻僎銷䷓瓁（箜）
(o) ꟯绤亡（箜）

(b) 㞞㸋┖⮛♴⛰┉牊䗯媲
㴨냇⺎釲憡儗꥘㎯氳꟯
绤亡
(i) 鎊㴨냇艃儗꥘㎯ꤽ㸋

⺱┉꥘㎯䙬䧘䏘塝
氳头⪝⺚附㸋⪝⺚
⹖⺱硎附㸋⪝⺚◎僗
꟯绤

(ii) ┉㳄㴨냇佭⺁┉㴨냇氳
绤揩⪝⺚䡝合揩⚀哅
䡝佭⺁┉㴨냇䢦㸋꥘
㎯仝┖䡗⿦⪝⺚氳绤揩
⪝⺚䡝合揩⚀哅

(iii) ⪔㳄㴨냇佭⺱┉瑮└
亡氳合揩⚀哅

(iv) ┉㳄㴨냇佭瑮└亡㴨
냇氳合揩⚀哅縡⺁
┉㴨냇佭瑮└亡㴨냇
氳绤揩⪝⺚

(v) 鎊㴨냇佭憡儗꥘㎯䡝
⛼憡儗꥘㎯꟯绤亡氳
㴨냇氳⧀⿦焱⮵縡錄
氳ꦗ绹䏳焱⮵銷ⱁ

(vi) 鎊㴨냇⹨⮽┕鳯瑮 (a)

ꯁ⪐䢦鏂㲋☕㚖䫞⯆
䡝⪦⺱䫞⯆

(vii) ┕鳯瑮 (a)(i) ꯁ⪐䢦鏂
㲋☕㚖㵴鎊㴨냇僗
ꄆ㛻氳䏆ꮷⱱ䡝佭鎊
㴨냇䡝鎊㴨냇头⪝
⺚氳꟯ꐷ畚杼☕⿦

(viii) 鎊㴨냇䡝⪭䢦㸋꥘㎯
⪐氳♴⛰䡗⿦⪝⺚⺸
儗꥘㎯䡝儗꥘㎯头⪝
⺚䬠❠꟯ꓝ畚杼☕⿦
僜務

♴⛰☕㚖氳鲥鈓佭䧘ꯏ僿僎㏇艃鎊
㴨냇氳◬佄╈䏆ꮷ鎊⺲☕㚖䡝⹨⪭
䏆ꮷ氳㳄㸋
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� Revenue

The principal act iv ity of the Company is administrat ing 

the registration of internet domain names under ".hk" and 

". 꺞  " country-code top level domains. The Company 

p rov i des  reg i s t r a t i on  o f  doma in  names  t h rough  i t s 

registrars, one of which is its wholly-owned subsidiary.

Revenue represents total income from provision of domain 

name registration services. The amount of each significant 

category of revenue from contracts with customers within 

the scope of HKFRS �� ,  Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers, is as follows: 

� 揩哅갯
儗⪝⺚氳╚釒哅務憡畚杼꺞㏑ⶆꮼ碍㓊⺲
ⷊր.hkց⹖ր. 꺞ց氳註⫈◄㲐儗
⪝⺚鵡鷪⪭註⫈僜務り⪭╈╯┉憡⪭鞳
附㸋⪝⺚䬠❠㓊⺲註⫈僜務

揩哅갯♏表䬠❠㓊⺲註⫈僜務氳䷅⪌竬갯
❤拨꺞財務報⼔嶗⯞瑮 �� 谝˒艃㲙䢒䢦
銬环合硝氳䷅沠疘㎠⪐艃㲙䢒銬环氳合硝氳
⺨ꯁꄆ㛻䷅⪌ꄌ갯㞞┖

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising 

from contracts with customers in existence at the reporting 

date.

As at �� December ����, the aggregated amount of the 

transaction price allocated to the remaining performance 

obl igat ions under the Company's exist ing contracts is 

$��,���,��� (����: $��,���,���). This amount represents 

revenue expected to be recognised in the future f rom 

deferred registration income (see note ��). 

ꯏ僿亦儔✿㵩◀澭鏂䄖㰇㏇氳✿舅亦報⼔仼
僿艃㲙䢒銬环氳合硝氳䷅⪌

亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼儗⪝⺚杯僗合硝
┖Ⱂ궠㷿硝鞊♴氳⮇鿦◬佄⧎劲竬갯憡
��,���,��� ⩕����䇗��,���,���⩕
鎊ꄌ갯䧘ꯏ僿㵩亦儔✿澭鏂✿舅鸚䋟註⫈䷅
⪌氳䷅⪌釤附註 ��

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Registration fees

Service fees

註⫈鞞
僜務鞞

$ 31,629,276
1,225,269

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���

$ 32,854,545 $ ��,���,���

� ⪭☾䷅⪌屻갯� Other net income

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Bank interest income

Exchange loss, net

Sundry income

ꉐ车⮵䕜䷅⪌
ⵜ⩣谱䮇屻갯
ꦊꯁ䷅⪌

$ 6,513,213
(4,700)
455,546

$ �,���,���
(�,���)
���,���

$ 6,964,059 $ �,���,���
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� Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a)  Finance costs

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Interest on lease liabilities 

 (note ��(b))

燃鞫靷⥍⮵䕜附註 ��(b)
$ 326,555 $ ���,���

Staff costs for ����  were net of wage subsidies 

from the Government of $���,��� to compensate 

the Group for employment of IT Trainees (���� : 

$���,���).

���� 䇗⿦䄄䡗儗䣩ꢝ適⨑儗꥘㎯
⧀榫 IT 㓸鋍⧀⿦氳䷓䈢䄄鞳適鞟
���,���⩕����䇗���,���⩕

(b)  Staff costs (b)  ⿦䄄䡗儗

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Contributions to defined 

contribution retirement plan

Salaries, wages and other 

benefits

槡㲋❠堑鴛⚔銷ⱁ氳❠堑

詯ꄌ䄄鞳⹖⪭☾焱⮵
$ 676,036

17,646,133

$ ���,���

��,���,���

$ 18,322,169 $ ��,���,���

(c)  Other items (c)  ⪭☾ꯁ泘

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Depreciation charge (note �)
-  owned property, plant and 

equipment

-  right-of-use assets

䤽艋ꝧ䶺附註 �
-  䳕僗氳擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔

-  ✳榫垷鞳榣
$ 805,102

2,482,566
$ �,���,���

�,���,���

$ 3,287,668 $ �,���,���

Auditor's remuneration

- audit services

- tax services

$ 235,000
55,500

$ ���,���
��,���

� ꢝ爀⯥嶯⮵
ꢝ爀⯥嶯⮵䄖䣩ꢝ┖⮛⺨ꯁ

(a)  靸ⳉ䡗儗
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� ꢝ爀⯥嶯⮵（箜）
(d)  ⪝浑✳⽝孨Ⳃ鞞榫

⪝浑✳⽝孨Ⳃ鞞榫佭䧘扝꤄灒私ꮻ
㇚錊銷ⱁ私礙㱨ꯁ泘私礙㱨
鞳銻⪦◸㛸⛂銷ⱁ私礙㱨ꪂ
䇗銷ⱁ嚂㉻㵴嚂㉻私礙㱨⟔䕜
⪦◸丩㰅䄬㕙溿鋁僎私礙ꡕ煟
╈䑐私礙㱨⿦䄄㓸鋍˒⛼憡┉
ꯁ僜務⹖♓鷝䢊亡䌋㱄綗私礙㱨
璣⪝浑✳⽝孨Ⳃ䢦榣榟氳鞞榫儗
꥘㎯氳⪝浑✳⽝孨Ⳃ佭鵂鷪磞笞
⪦⺱磞笞鞳Ⲃ㓸罬牊㯹頢Ⲃ
⹖⪦⺱頢Ⲃ孨Ⳃ✳꺞㏇◎绤私
✳榫┕杯⭴┉⠕⪦踅⹖㱨氳梫
㗟┾렺⳶✳榫◎绤私⹖注꟯䤗轱
䢦僗泣䫚㍕⪝浑✳⽝憡╚釒泘氳䢦
榣榟♓⹖䢦僗僗Ⲃ亦⪝浑✳⽝孨Ⳃ
䡗Ⱶ鷠⛼氳鞞榫㏱逈塾硱憡⪝浑✳
⽝孨Ⳃ鞞榫

� 蝕◄ꀦꄌ
劯䴆꺞վ⪝⺚卋❆տ瑮 ���(�) 卋⹖վ⪝
⺚䥑꨾蝕◄⮵沠鞳乢釨❆տ瑮 � 鼨䥑꨾
╯蝕◄ꀦꄌ㞞┖

� Loss before taxation (continued)

(d)  Public mission activities expenses

Pub l i c  m i ss i on  ac t i v i t i e s  expenses  rep resen t 

t h e  e x p e n s e s  i n c u r r e d  i n  r e s p e c t  o f  p u b l i c 

mission activit ies including the Web Accessibi l i ty 

Recognition Scheme, the Cybersecurity project, the 

Cybersecurity Infohub platform, the Cyber Youth 

Programme, the Machine-to-machine Cybersecurity 

information sharing, Digital Marketplace Seminar, the 

Cyber Defense Hub, Staff Cybersecurity Training-

as-a-service and Game aided Learning for Cyber 

Security. Public mission activities of the Group are to 

organise, co-organise, fund, seed, sponsor and co-

sponsor activities to make Hong Kong an inclusive 

and secured environment for the use of the internet, 

and to encourage the use of the internet and related 

technologies. All direct expenses incurred for the 

primary and dominant purpose of public mission and 

that contribute to the successful running of public 

mission activities are considered as public mission 

activities expenses.

� Directors' emoluments

Directors' emoluments disclosed pursuant to section ���(�) 
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and Part � of the 

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of 

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Directors' fees

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses

Retirement scheme contributions

蝕◄返ꄌ
詯ꄌ孅鞟⹖㴨擻䷅沠
鿤䗯晥ꄌ
鴛⚔銷ⱁ❠堑

$ –

–

–

–

$ –

–

–

–
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2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Loss before taxation ꢝ爀⯥谱䮇 $ (5,280,576) $ (�,���,���)

Notional tax on loss before 

taxation, calculated at ��.�% 

(����: ��.�%)

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of unused tax losses 

utilised

Tax effect of loss exempted from 

profits tax calculation

䧞拨爀曎 ��.�%���� 䇗
��.�%銷畁ꢝ爀⯥
谱䮇氳⺲紶爀ꯁ

夯ꯄ鐑爀䷅⪌氳爀務䏆ꮷ
䄖Ⳃ榫儔⮵榫爀務谱䮇氳
爀務䏆ꮷ

雌⩦⮵䐃爀銷畁氳谱䮇氳
爀務䏆ꮷ

$ (871,295)
(1,701)

(10,861)

883,857

$ (���,���)
(��)

(�,���)

���,���

Actual tax expense 㴨꤀爀ꯁ䶺⭴ $ - $ -

� 禍⺭䮇沠⹖⪭☾ꪫ䷅沠辑䢦示
氳䢦䐃爀

(a) 禍⺭䮇沠⹖⪭☾ꪫ䷅沠辑䢦
示氳爀ꯁ

���� 䇗氳꺞⮵䐃爀䲡⤔佭䧞儗
䇗䈲氳⚽銷䟕鍑爀⮵弞♓ ��.�%
���� 䇗��.�%氳爀曎銷畁
劯䴆վ爀務卋❆տ瑮 �� 卋儗⪝⺚
暢雌⩦筤硱꺞⮵䐃爀

(b) 爀ꯁ䶺⭴艃僎銷（谱䮇）ҧ
嶯⮵䧞鸸榫爀曎銷畁氳㵴韰

� Income tax in the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income 

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for ���� is 

calculated at ��.� % (����: ��.�%) of the estimated 

assessable profits for the year.  The Company is 

exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax according to 

section �� of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and 
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax 
rate:
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�  擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔� Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-

use

 assets

使用權資產

Office

 machinery

 and

 equipment

辦公室機器
及設備

Furniture 

and

 fixtures

傢具及裝置

Network and

 computer

 hardware/

 software and

 equipment

網絡及電腦
硬件╱軟件

及設備

Total

總計

Cost:

At � January ����
Additions

Disposals

䡗儗
亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
㘎糍
谊糍

$ 8,227,713
-

-

$ 377,190
-

-

$ 3,770,737
-

(7,423)

$ 17,955,808
431,991

(2,328,294)

$ 30,331,448
431,991

(2,335,717)

At �� December ���� 亦 ����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ 8,227,713 $ 377,190 $ 3,763,314 $ 16,059,505 $ 28,427,722

Accumulated depreciation:

At � January ����
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

碶銷䤽艋
亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
儗䇗䈲䶺⭴
谊糍侇䲡㍑

$ 1,262,892
2,482,566

-

$ 377,190
-

-

$ 3,710,165
56,798
(7,423)

$ 16,513,411
748,304

(2,328,294)

$ 21,863,658
3,287,668

(2,335,717)

At �� December ���� 亦 ����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ 3,745,458 $ 377,190 $ 3,759,540 $ 14,933,421 $ 22,815,609

Net book value:

At �� December ����
韰ꪫ屻⡭
亦����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ 4,482,255 $ - $ 3,774 $ 1,126,084 $ 5,612,113

Cost:

At � January ����
Additions

Disposals

䡗儗
亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
㘎糍
谊糍

$ �,���,���
�,���,���

(�,���,���)

$ ���,���
-

-

$ �,���,���
-

-

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���
(���,���)

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���

(�,���,���)

At �� December ���� 亦 ����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ �,���,��� $ ���,��� $ �,���,��� $ ��,���,��� $ ��,���,���

Accumulated depreciation:

At � January ����
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

碶銷䤽艋
亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
儗䇗䈲䶺⭴
谊糍侇䲡㍑

$ �,���,���
�,���,���

(�,���,���)

$ ���,���
�,���

-

$ �,���,���
���,���

-

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���
(���,���)

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���

(�,���,���)

At �� December ���� 亦 ����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ �,���,��� $ ���,��� $ �,���,��� $ ��,���,��� $ ��,���,���

Net book value:

At �� December ����
韰ꪫ屻⡭
亦����䇗 ��僖 ��仼 $ �,���,��� $ - $ ��,��� $ �,���,��� $ �,���,���
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�  擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔（箜）
(a) ✳榫垷鞳榣

䧞注꟯鞳榣⮯ⱁ⮇氳✳榫垷鞳榣
韰ꪫ屻⡭⮇冫㞞┖

䧞注꟯鞳榣⮯ⱁ⮇氳✳榫垷鞳榣
韰ꪫ屻⡭⮇冫㞞┖

儗䇗䈲✳榫垷鞳榣㘎ⱶꦼ⩕����
䇗�,���,��� ⩕ 鎊ꄌ갯艃劯
䴆◎绤私錄亩氳亏燃鞫⶜閲⹖燃鞫
舅榫擻哅氳祺箜銬燃鞫⶜閲䟕♀氳
鞳儗⴫燃鞫♀堑僗꟯

燃鞫杯ꄌ孲⭴竬갯氳鎌䗯⹖燃鞫靷
⥍氳⮽僿⮇冫⮇⮯鬼⮛亦附註 ��(c)

⹖ ��(b)

� Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use 

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases 

recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

During the year, addit ions to r ight-of-use assets 

were $Nil (����: $�,���,���). This amount related 

to the capitalised lease payment payable under new 

lease agreements for internet facilities and renewed 

tenancy agreement for a property leased for own 

use.

Detai ls of total cash outf lows for leases and the 

maturity analysis of lease l iabil it ies are set out in 

notes ��(c) and ��(b), respectively.

Note

ꡭ錝
2023

2023 年
����

���� 䇗

Property leased for 

 own use, carried at 

depreciated cost

Internet facilities, carried 

 at depreciated cost

燃鞫舅榫氳擻哅䧞䤽艋
䡗儗⪌韰

◎绤私錄亩䧞䤽艋䡗儗
⪌韰

(i)

(ii)

$ 3,187,551

1,294,704

$ �,���,���

�,���,���

$ 4,482,255 $ �,���,���

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Depreciation charge of right-

of-use assets by class of 

underlying asset

Property leased for own use

Internet facilities

䧞注꟯鞳榣⮯ⱁ⮇氳✳榫
垷鞳榣氳䤽艋ꝧ䶺

燃鞫舅榫氳擻哅
◎绤私錄亩

$ 1,702,550
780,016

$ �,���,���
�,���,���

$ 2,482,566 $ �,���,���

Interest on lease liabilities 

(note �(a))

燃鞫靷⥍⮵䕜附註 �(a)
$ 326,555 $ ���,���
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�  擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔（箜）
(a) ✳榫垷鞳榣（箜）

(i) 燃鞫舅榫氳擻哅
儗꥘㎯䄖鵡鷪燃鞫⶜閲暢䐃
✳榫擻哅⛼憡鰾⪝㲝氳垷
⮵燃鞫憡僿 � 䇗

(ii) ⪭☾燃鞫
儗꥘㎯劯䴆 � 舘 � 䇗⮽僿氳
燃硝燃鞫◎绤私錄亩䢦僗
燃鞫㏱┘ⴎ⻢⺎闭燃鞫♀堑

� 亦ꡭ㸋⪝⺚氳䤸鞳
䡽舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼塛䇗䈲劯䴆㵴儗
⪝⺚⺎䷅㍑丩갯氳鍑⚽儗⪝⺚亦附㸋⪝⺚
氳䤸鞳丩峎⡭亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼
蝕◄僎㶩亦附㸋⪝⺚氳䤸鞳氳⺎䷅㍑丩갯鶡
车鍑⚽劯䴆䏘璣氳鍑⚽儗䇗䈲儔㵴峎⡭
谱䮇鮺㍑鶡车澭鏂

� Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(i) Property leased for own use

The Group has obta ined the r ight  to use 

a property as i ts off ice through a tenancy 

agreement. The lease runs for a period of �
years. 

(ii) Other leases

The Group leases internet faci l i t ies under 

leases running for  a per iod of  �-�  years.   

None of the leases includes variable lease 

payments.

� Investment in a subsidiary

The Company's  investment  in  a  subs id ia ry  was fu l l y 

impaired during the year ended �� December ���� based 

on  an  assessment  o f  i t s  recoverab le  amount .  A t  ��
December ����, the directors carried out an assessment of 

the recoverable amount of the investment in a subsidiary. 

Based on their review, no reversal of impairment losses 

was recognised during the year.

Name of company

⪝⺚⺲牒

Place of 

incorporation 

and operation

錝⫈䡗环⹖
祺揩㏑럅

Particulars of issued 

capital

䄖氪车罇儗
氳鎌䗯

Percentage 

of issued 

capital 

directly 

held by the 

Company 

儗⪝⺚泣䫚
䧏僗氳䄖氪车
罇儗氬⮇奄

Principal activity

╚釒哅ⳉ

Hong Kong Domain Name 

 Registration Company Limited

꺞㓊⺲註⫈僗꡿⪝⺚

Hong Kong

꺞

� ordinary shares of

HKD��� each

�罇俋鵡罇夷罇���⩕

���%

���%

Provision of .hk" and

 ".꺞 " domain name

registration services

䬠❠ր.hkց⹖ր.꺞ց㓊⺲
註⫈僜務
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� 鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑� Trade and other receivables

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Trade receivables 

Deposits, prepayments and other 

receivables

鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑
䧞ꄌꯏ♀堑ꯁ⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑

$ 29,950

9,382,838

$ ��,���

�,���,���

$ 9,412,788 $ �,���,���

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Bank deposits maturing after 

 three months when placed

Cash at bank and on hand

  (cash and cash equivalents in the 

consolidated cash flow statement)

㰇堑僿飃鷪└⠕僖╯
ꉐ车㰇堑

ꉐ车⹖䣆꯽杯ꄌ
綜合杯ꄌ孲ꄈ表䢦炐氳
杯ꄌ⹖杯ꄌ璣⧎擻

$ 182,113,231

6,789,569

$ ���,���,���

�,���,���

Cash and bank deposits in the 

consolidated

statement of financial position

綜合財務敻媲表䢦炐氳
杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑

$ 188,902,800 $ ���,���,���

儗꥘㎯ꯏ僿㏇┉䇗䏳䷅㍑䡝澭鏂憡ꝧ䶺氳
鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑憡 ���,��� ⩕
���� 䇗���,��� ⩕⪭궠䢦僗鞥佄
䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑㵩僎㏇┉䇗⪐䷅㍑
䡝澭鏂憡ꝧ䶺

鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑㏇氪⭴韰ㄲ仼銷 �� 㛿⪐⮽
僿儗꥘㎯⟔鞚䷓瓁氳⪭☾鎌䗯鬼⮛亦附註
��(a)

�� 杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑
(a) 杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑ⴎ䦮

(b) 踅鞳孨Ⳃ榣榟氳靷⥍╯㵴韰

┖表鎌鳯儗꥘㎯✿舅踅鞳孨Ⳃ氳
靷⥍闭Ⳃⴎ䦮杯ꄌ⹖ꪞ杯ꄌ闭
Ⳃ踅鞳孨Ⳃ䢦榣榟氳靷⥍憡杯
ꄌ孲ꄈ䡝儔✿杯ꄌ孲ꄈ㵩亦杯ꄌ
孲ꄈ表╈⮇憡✿舅踅鞳孨Ⳃ杯
ꄌ孲ꄈ氳靷⥍

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 
financing activities:

The table below detai ls changes in the Group's 

l iabi l i t ies from financing activit ies, including both 

cash and non-cash changes.  L iab i l i t ies  ar is ing 

f rom f inancing act iv i t ies are l iabi l i t ies for  which 

cash f lows were ,  o r  fu tu re  cash f lows w i l l  be , 

c lass i f i ed  in  the  cash  f low s ta tement  as  cash 

flows from financing activit ies.

The amount of the Group's trade and other receivables 

expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after 

more than one year is $���,��� (����: $���,���). All of 

the other trade and other receivables are expected to be 

recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Trade receivables are due within �� days from the date of 

billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set 

out in note ��(a).

�� Cash and bank deposits

(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:
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Lease 

liabilities

燃鞫靷⥍

At � January ����

Changes from financing cash flows:

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

���� 䇗 �僖 �仼

踅鞳杯ꄌ孲ꄈ氳闭Ⳃ

䄖♀燃ꄌ鞳ꄌ鼨⮇
䄖♀燃ꄌ⮵䕜鼨⮇

$ �,���,���

$ (�,���,���)
(���,���)

Total changes from financing cash flows 踅鞳杯ꄌ孲ꄈ氳闭Ⳃ竬갯 $ (�,���,���)

Other changes:

Interest expenses (note �(a))

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into 

a new lease during the year 

⪭☾闭Ⳃ

⮵䕜ꝧ䶺附註 �(a)
䇗⪐銬环亏燃鞫榣榟氳燃鞫靷⥍㘎ⱶ

$ ���,���

�,���,���

Total other changes ⪭☾闭Ⳃ竬갯 $ �,���,���

At �� December ���� and � January ����

Changes from financing cash flows:

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼⹖ ���� 䇗 �僖 �仼

踅鞳杯ꄌ孲ꄈ氳闭Ⳃ

䄖♀燃ꄌ鞳ꄌ鼨⮇
䄖♀燃ꄌ⮵䕜鼨⮇

$ 7,004,403

$ (2,390,265)
(326,555)

Total changes from financing cash flows 踅鞳杯ꄌ孲ꄈ氳闭Ⳃ竬갯 $ (2,716,820)

Other change:

Interest expenses (note �(a))

⪭☾闭Ⳃ

⮵䕜ꝧ䶺附註 �(a) $ 326,555

Total other change ⪭☾闭Ⳃ竬갯 $ 326,555

At �� December ���� 亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼 $ 4,614,138

�� 杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑（箜）
(b) 踅鞳孨Ⳃ榣榟氳靷⥍╯㵴韰

（箜）

�� Cash and bank deposits (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 
financing activities: (continued)

HONG KONG INTERNET REGISTRATION CORPORATION LIMITED     ANNUAL REPORT ������

 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)（以港幣列示）

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

綜合財務報表附註



�� 杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑（箜）
(c) 燃鞫杯ꄌ孲⭴竬갯

綜合杯ꄌ孲ꄈ表╈僗꟯燃鞫氳堑ꯁ
ⴎ䦮┖⮛⺨ꯁ

�� Cash and bank deposits (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consol idated cash f low 

statement for leases comprise the following:

All of the other payables are expected to be settled within 

one year.

䢦僗⪭☾䟕♀堑ꯏ銷僎㏇┉䇗⪐⨑♀

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Within financing cash flows 亦踅鞳杯ꄌ孲ꄈ⪐ $ 2,716,820 $ �,���,���

$ 2,716,820 $ �,���,���

�� ⪭☾䟕♀堑�� Other payables

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Accrued charges and other creditors

Advances received

䟕銷鞞榫⹖⪭☾䟕♀韰堑
䄖䷅ꯏ♀堑

$ 10,879,425
2,964,556

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���

$ 13,843,981 $ ��,���,���
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�� 鸚䋟錝⫈䷅⪌
亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼鸚䋟註⫈䷅⪌ꯏ銷
僎亦┖⮛僿ꝴ澭鏂憡䷅⪌㞞┖

儗꥘㎯鵡䅻僎㏇㲙䢒註⫈◎绤私㓊⺲侇䷅⮽
갯ꯏ♀堑䷅⮽艃儔✿僿ꝴ僗꟯氳鞞榫澭
鏂憡合硝靷⥍┾㏇綜合財務敻媲表╈塾
憡鸚䋟註⫈䷅⪌註⫈鞞䷅⪌㏇┉舘ⶇ䇗氳
註⫈僿⪐♓泣稘嫏ꤛ侇ꝴ澭鏂

⺭硝靷⥍氳闭Ⳃ

�� Deferred registration income

At �� December ����, the deferred registration income 

expected to be recognised as income is as follows:

The  Group  t yp ica l l y  rece i ves  fu l l  p repayments  f rom 

customers when they register internet domain names. 

Fee received relating to future periods is recognised as a 

contract liability and is classified as deferred registration 

income in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Registrat ion fees income is recognised over t ime on a 

straight-line basis over the registration period of one to ten 

years. 

Movements in contract liabilities

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Within � year � 䇗⪐ $ 20,422,505 $ ��,���,���

After � year but within � years

After � years but within � years

After � years

� 䇗䏳⛙ � 䇗⪐
� 䇗䏳⛙ � 䇗⪐
� 䇗䏳

$ 7,663,021
9,316,323
3,493,804

$ �,���,���
�,���,���
�,���,���

$ 20,473,148 $ ��,���,���

$ 40,895,653 $ ��,���,���

2023
2023 年

����
���� 䇗

Balance at � January

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of 

recognising revenue during the year that 

was included in the contract liabilities at 

the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of 

receiving registration fees during the year

亦 � 僖 � 仼氳磶궠
亦䇗⮤澭鏂ⴎ⻢㏇合硝
靷⥍╈氳䇗䈲䷅⪌
㵷舜合硝靷⥍峎㵼

榺亦㏇䇗⪐䷅⮽註⫈鞞
縡㵷舜合硝靷⥍㘎ⱶ

$ 41,041,768

(21,122,702)

20,976,587

$ ��,���,���

(��,���,���)

��,���,���

Balance at �� December 亦 �� 僖 �� 仼氳磶궠 $ 40,895,653 $ ��,���,���
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�� 禍⺭靸ⳉ敻媲辑䢦示氳䢦䐃爀

(a) 䄖澭鏂鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣⹖靷⥍

儗꥘㎯䄖㏇綜合財務敻媲表澭鏂氳
鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣ҧ 靷⥍氳磞䡗鼨
⮇⹖儗䇗䈲闭Ⳃ㞞┖

(b) 儔澭鏂氳鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣
劯䴆附註 � (k )  䢦鬼氳僎銷䷓瓁
儗꥘㎯┾扝澭鏂僗꟯碶銷爀務谱䮇
���,��� ⩕���� 䇗���,���⩕
氳鸚䋟爀ꯁ鞳榣佭㍕憡㏇注꟯爀
務㏑ⶆ⹖㴨냇┖暢䐃耉䥡䣩谱䮇
氳儔✿䟕鐑爀嶯⮵氳⺎耉䓪┘㛻
鎊爀務谱䮇㏇杯车爀務嫏❆┖┾
扝⮽僿仼

�� Income tax in the consolidated statement 
of financial position

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
recognised:

The component of deferred tax (assets)/ l iabi l i t ies 

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial 

position and the movements during the year are as 

follows:

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in 

note � (k), the Group has not recognised deferred 

tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of 

$��� ,���  (���� :  $��� ,��� )  as i t  is not probable 

that future taxable profits against which the losses 

can be util ised will be available in the relevant tax 

jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire 

under the current tax legislation.

Depreciation

 allowances

in excess of 

the related

 depreciation

飃⭴僗꟯䤽艋氳
䤽艋⩦爀갯

Future

benefits of

tax losses

爀ⳉ谱䮇氳
儔✿⮵沠

Total

竬銷

Deferred tax arising from:

At � January ����
(Credited)/charged to profit or 

loss

鸚䋟爀ꯁ✿舅亦

亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
亦䮇沠銷⪌ҧ䣩ꢝ

$ ���,���

(��,���)

$ (���,���)

��,���

$ -

-

At �� December ���� 亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼 $ ���,��� $ (���,���) $ -

At � January ����
(Credited)/charged to profit or 

loss

亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �仼
亦䮇沠銷⪌ҧ䣩ꢝ

$ 168,599
(58,208)

$ (168,599)
58,208

$ -

-

At �� December ���� 亦 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼 $ 110,391 $ (110,391) $ -
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�� 禍⺭靸ⳉ敻媲辑䢦示氳䢦䐃爀
儗꥘㎯畚杼鞳儗氳╚釒泘氳佭⟊꤄儗꥘㎯
⺎䧏箜祺揩✳⪭⺎♓筷箜憡꺞攑⮯车
䷓ⶆ⹖杶氳◎绤私炙紮䬠❠꺞㏑ⶆꮼ
碍㓊⺲ⷊր.hkց⹖ր. 꺞ց氳註⫈
⹖畚杼僜務

儗꥘㎯䤧ր鞳儗ց槡㲋憡垷沠氳䢦僗磞䡗
鼨⮇

儗꥘㎯僎㲋僿囸鋁⹖畚杼鞳儗几啶┾㏇┘
䥡銕蝕◄㵴儗꥘㎯氳⹨鋖☕鞊♴䡝꺞վ⪝
⺚卋❆տ氳釨㲋氳疘㎠⪐㍕䟕㵴儗꥘㎯啶
䡗䏆ꮷ氳祺忴敻媲氳鮺闭縡鐪丞鞳儗几啶

儗꥘㎯㏇儗䇗䈲䡝┕䇗䈲㏱夯ꯄ⹨㛛鼨銬环
氳鞳儗釨㲋䢦釨꡿

�� 鞳儗⹖⨶⤔
儗꥘㎯綜合垷沠⺨ꯁ泘氳僿⮤⹖僿儕磶궠㵴
韰鬼亦綜合垷沠闭Ⳃ表儗⪝⺚⠕⮯垷沠ꯁ
泘榺䇗⮤⹖䇗儕氳闭Ⳃ鎌䗯鬼⮛㞞┖

�� Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital 

are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going 

concern, so that i t  can cont inue to serve the internet 

communi ty  o f  the  Hong Kong Spec ia l  Admin is t ra t i ve 

Region, as well as the global internet community, in relation 

to the administration of the ".hk" and ".꺞 " country-code 

top-level domain.

The Group defines "capital" as including all components of 

equity.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and 

managed. Adjustments are made to the capital structure 

in  l ight  o f  changes in  economic  cond i t ions  a f fect ing 

the Group, to the extent that these do not confl ict with 

the directors' f iduciary duties towards the Group or the 

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group was not subject to externally imposed capital 

requirements in either the current or the prior year.

�� Capital and reserve 

The reconc i l i a t ion  between the  open ing  and c los ing 

balances of each component of the Group's consolidated 

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes 

i n  equ i t y.  De ta i l s  o f  the  changes  i n  the  Company 's 

individual components of equity between the beginning and 

the end of the year are set out below.

Retained 

profits

⟊槴嶯⮵

Balance at 1 January 2022

Change in equity for 2022:

Loss and total comprehensive income

於 2022 年 1 月 1 日的結餘

於 2022 年的權益變動：

谱䮇⹖ꪫ䷅沠竬갯

$ ���,���,���

(�,���,���)

Balance at 31 December 2022 and 

1 January 2023

Change in equity for 2023:

Loss and total comprehensive income

於 2022 年 12 月 31 日及
2023 年 1 月 1 日的結餘

於 2023 年的權益變動：

谱䮇⹖ꪫ䷅沠竬갯

$ 150,850,654

(5,356,710)

Balance at 31 December 2023 於 2023 年 12 月 31 日的結餘 $ 145,493,944
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�� 靸ⳉ겨ꤠ畚杼⹖ꄌ踅䄄氳⪝⩒
⧎⡭
儗꥘㎯㏇塜䅻哅務鷪╈僎䤖⹨⟔鞚孲
Ⳃ鞳ꄌ⹖㛛䆸겨ꤠ儗꥘㎯㏇塝璣亡ꪫ氳
겨ꤠ䤖䳸♓⹖鵂鷪財務겨ꤠ畚杼䷓瓁⹖䅻
釨♓䫞⯆塝璣겨ꤠ氳鎌䗯㞞┖

(a)  ⟔鞚겨ꤠ
儗꥘㎯氳⟔鞚겨ꤠ╚釒✿舅杯ꄌ⹖
ꉐ车㰇堑♓⹖鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭
☾䟕䷅堑畚杼㷼⯆㲋⟔鞚䷓瓁
┾䧞䧏箜㓹嶗泃㴕塝璣⟔鞚겨ꤠ

儗꥘㎯氳杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑㰇䷒亦㛻
㑔ꄌ踅嚂啶

㶩鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑縡銨
儗꥘㎯僎㵴䢦僗榼鑂飃鷀切姢䇖⟔
鞚ꄌ갯氳㲙䢒鶡车⟔鞚鍑⚽鎊璣
鍑⚽縓䜢㲙䢒鷪䏢⨑麅鞚堑氳鋘ꍖ
財務敻媲⹖⪭☾㍕碜鞥佄䟕䷅韰
堑㏇氪⭴韰ㄲ仼銷 �� 㛿⪐⮽僿
㏇┉芙䗯媲┖儗꥘㎯┾扝䧏僗㲙
䢒䬠❠氳䥡䥨⿁

亦磶畁仼儗꥘㎯亦瑮└亡㲙䢒氳
鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑┾扝ꄆ
㛻⹖꥘╈氳⟔鞚겨ꤠ儗꥘㎯♓注
璣亦丞⠕㰇箜僿ꯏ僿⟔鞚谱䮇✳
榫䲡⤔ꢛ銷畁氳ꄌ갯銷ꄈ鞥佄
䟕䷅韰堑氳谱䮇䲡⤔ꗷ亦⪭㲙䢒
氳財務㴨ⱱ⹖鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑氳侇ꝴ
鷪湿ꯏ僿⟔鞚谱䮇䲡⤔逈釲憡䏆
ꮷ鬴㵼

儗꥘㎯䢦䤖⹨氳⟔鞚겨ꤠ┕꡿憡綜
合財務敻媲表╈杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑
鞥佄䟕䷅韰堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑氳韰ꪫ
⡭儗꥘㎯┾扝䬠❠♴⛰⺎耉♒儗
꥘㎯䤖⹨⟔鞚겨ꤠ氳䳸⟊

�� Financial risk management and fair values 
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, l iquidity and currency risks arises in 

the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's 

exposure to these risks and the financial risk management 

policies and practices used by the Group to manage these 

risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to 

cash and deposits with banks and trade and other 

receivables. Management has a credit policy in place 

and exposures to these credit risks are monitored 

on an ongoing basis.

The Group's cash and deposi ts wi th banks are 

placed with major financial institutions.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual 

credit evaluations are performed on all customers 

requ i r i ng  c red i t  ove r  a  ce r ta in  amount .  These 

take into account the customer's past payments 

history, financial position and other factors. Trade 

receivables are due within �� days from the date 

of bi l l ings. Normal ly,  the Group does not obtain 

collateral from customers. 

At  the end of  the report ing per iod,  there is  no 

significant concentration of credit risk with respect 

to t rade and other  rece ivables f rom th i rd party 

customers. The Group measures loss allowances for 

the trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime 

ECLs (which is calculated using a provision matrix). 

Due to the financial strength of its customers and 

the short duration of the trade receivables, the ECL 

allowance is considered insignificant.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 

by  the  ca r ry ing  amount  o f  cash  and  depos i t s 

with banks and trade and other receivables in the 

consolidated statement of f inancial posit ion. The 

Group does not  prov ide any guarantees which 

would expose the Group to credit risk.
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�� Financial risk management and fair values 
of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity 

requ i rements  and i t s  compl iance  w i th  l end ing 

covenants, to ensure that i t  maintains suff ic ient 

reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable 

securities and adequate committed lines of funding 

from major financial institutions and/or from other 

group companies to meet its liquidity requirements 

in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual 

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the 

Group's f inancia l  l iabi l i t ies, which are based on 

contractual  undiscounted cash f lows ( inc luding 

interest payments computed using contractual rates 

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of 

the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group 

can be required to pay:

�� 靸ⳉ겨ꤠ畚杼⹖ꄌ踅䄄氳⪝⩒
⧎⡭（箜）
(b)  孲Ⳃ鞳ꄌ겨ꤠ

儗꥘㎯氳䷓瓁憡㲋僿泃㴕⪭孲Ⳃ鞳
ꄌꧏ姲⹖⪭鹘㱥鞚堑㜷钱╯䗯媲
♓澭⟊⪭禵䧏餉㛭杯ꄌ⹖ꤛ侇⺎亦
䄬㕙┕闭杯氳镜⯉⨶⤔♓⹖禵䧏榺
╚釒ꄌ踅嚂啶⹖ҧ䡝⪭☾꥘㎯⪝⺚
䬠❠╯餉㛭䤖钱踅鞳갯䈲♓䟕♀
湿僿⹖ꝏ僿孲Ⳃ鞳ꄌꧏ姲

┖表鬼⮛儗꥘㎯ꄌ踅靷⥍亦磶畁仼
氳궠┖合硝⮽僿䗯媲塝╤劯䴆合
硝儔鞟杯杯ꄌ孲ꄈⴎ䦮䧞銬硝⮵
曎䡝萵憡宰䕜䧞磶畁仼氳ⷊ僿
⮵曎銷畁氳⮵䕜♀堑♓⹖儗꥘㎯
⺎耉ꧏ釒䶺♀氳僅企仼僿縡䐃⭴

����
���� 䇗

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

⺭硝儔鞟杯杯ꄌ孲⭴

Within

� year or on

demand

� 䇗⪐䡝
䧞釒姲

$

More than

� year but

less than

� years

飃鷪 � 䇗⛙
㵼亦 � 䇗

$

More than

� years but

less than 

� years

飃鷪 � 䇗⛙
㵼亦 � 䇗

$

Total

竬銷
$

Carrying

amount at

�� Dec

亦 �� 僖 �� 仼
氳韰ꪫ⡭

$

Lease liabilities

Other payables

燃鞫靷⥍
⪭☾䟕♀堑

2,552,159
13,843,981

1,977,549
-

355,300
-

4,885,008
13,843,981

4,614,138
13,843,981

16,396,140 1,977,549 355,300 18,728,989 18,458,119
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����
���� 䇗

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

⺭硝儔鞟杯杯ꄌ孲⭴

Within

� year or on

demand

� 䇗⪐䡝
䧞釒姲

$

More than

� year but

less than

� years

飃鷪 � 䇗⛙
㵼亦 � 䇗

$

More than

� years but

less than 

� years

飃鷪 � 䇗⛙
㵼亦 � 䇗

$

Total

竬銷
$

Carrying

amount at

�� Dec

亦 �� 僖 �� 仼
氳韰ꪫ⡭

$

Lease liabilities

Other payables

燃鞫靷⥍
⪭☾䟕♀堑

�,���,���
��,���,���

�,���,��� �,���,��� �,���,���
��,���,���

�,���,���
��,���,���

��,���,��� �,���,��� �,���,��� ��,���,��� ��,���,���

�� Financial risk management and fair values 
of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

�� 靸ⳉ겨ꤠ畚杼⹖ꄌ踅䄄氳⪝⩒
⧎⡭（箜）
(b)  孲Ⳃ鞳ꄌ겨ꤠ（箜）

(c) 㛛幣겨ꤠ
儗꥘㎯㍕鶡车萵䇕♓紈⩕銷⧎氳◬
佄縡ꯄꪫ㵴㛛䆸겨ꤠ榺亦䆸艃
紈⩕䫇ꅺ儗꥘㎯鏂憡䆸⩣紈⩕
ⵜ曎┘僎⭴杯ꄆ㛻闭Ⳃ

(d) ⪝⩒⧎⡭
亦 ���� 䇗⹖ ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼
儗꥘㎯䧞䡗儗䡝䶥ꊷ䡗儗⮛韰╯ꄌ
踅䄄氳韰ꪫ⡭艃⪭⪝⩒⧎⡭扝ꄆ
㛻䄐樟

�� ꄆ㛻꟯绤亡◬佄
ꢝ儗財務報表⪭☾鼨⮇䢦䥑꨾氳◬佄⹖磶궠
㛛儗꥘㎯亦䇗⪐◱艃꟯绤亡鶡车┖⮛ꄆ㛻
◬佄

(c) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency r isks through 

certain transactions that are dominated in the United 

States dol lars ("USD"). As the Hong Kong dol lar 

("HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group considers 

the risk of movements in exchange rate between the 

HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

(d) Fair values

The car ry ing amounts  o f  the Group's  f inanc ia l 

instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are 

not materially different from their fair values as at ��
December ���� and ����.

�� Material related party transactions

In addit ion to the transactions and balances disclosed 

elsewhere in these financial statements during the year, the 

Group entered into the following material related parties 

transactions:

����
���� 䇗

����
���� 䇗

Key management personnel, including directors:

-  Short-term employee benefits

-  Capitalised lease payment paid under lease

 agreements for certain internet facilities and an

 office with related companies (note)

畚杼釒⿦ⴎ䦮蝕◄
-  湿僿⧀⿦焱⮵
-  劯䴆燃鞫⶜閲䶺♀氳鞳儗⴫燃鞫
♀堑榫亦萵䇕◎绤私錄亩⹖注
꟯⪝⺚氳鰾⪝㲝附註

$ 5,271,564

2,913,543

$ �,���,���

�,���,���
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�� ꄆ㛻꟯绤亡◬佄（箜）

附註

䡽舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼塛䇗䈲儗꥘
㎯䄖舅┉ꝴ⪝⺚⪭蝕◄◱憡儗⪝⺚蝕
◄燃鞫 萵䇕◎绤私錄亩憡僿㍌䇗泣
舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼Ⱂ궠燃鞫靷⥍憡
�,���,��� ⩕

䡽舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼塛䇗䈲儗꥘㎯
䄖艃┉ꝴ⪝⺚⪭蝕◄◱憡儗⪝⺚蝕◄⺁
车 箜銬⪭鰾⪝㲝氳燃鞫⶜閲憡僿└䇗
泣舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼Ⱂ궠燃鞫靷⥍憡
�,���,��� ⩕

�� 儗⪝⺚╯靸ⳉ敻媲辑

�� Material related party transactions 
(continued)

 Note:

 During the year ended �� December ����, the Group has 

leased certain internet facil it ies for a term of four years, 

from a company whose director is also a director of the 

Company. At ��  December ���� ,  the remain ing lease 

liability was $�,���,���. 

 Dur ing the year ended ��  December ���� ,  the Group 

has renewed the tenancy agreement for its office for an 

additional three years, from a company whose director is 

also a director of the Company. At �� December ����, the 

remaining lease liability was $�,���,���.

��  Company-level statement of financial position

����
���� 䇗

����
���� 䇗

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deposits

非流動資產

擻哅䊰䢣⹖錄⤔
䧞ꄌ

$ 4,197,786
654,759

$ �,���,���
���,���

$ 4,852,545 $ �,���,���

Current assets

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank deposits

流動資產

䧞ꄌꯏ♀堑⹖⪭☾䟕䷅堑
杯ꄌ⹖ꉐ车㰇堑

$ 7,452,433
187,804,312

$ �,���,���
���,���,���

$ 195,256,745 $ ���,���,���

Current liabilities

Other payables
Deferred registration income
Amount due to a subsidiary
Lease liabilities

流動負債

⪭☾䟕♀堑
鸚䋟註⫈䷅⪌
䟕♀附㸋⪝⺚堑ꯁ
燃鞫靷⥍

$ 9,991,215
16,047,002
8,373,133
2,051,690

$ �,���,���
��,���,���
�,���,���
�,���,���

$ 36,463,040 $ ��,���,���

Net current assets 流動資產淨值 $ 158,793,705 $ ���,���,���

Total assets less current liabilities 資產總值減流動負債 $ 163,646,250 $ ���,���,���
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����
���� 䇗

����
���� 䇗

Non-current liabilities

Deferred registration income

Lease liabilities

非流動負債

鸚䋟註⫈䷅⪌
燃鞫靷⥍

$ 15,897,998
2,254,308

$ ��,���,���
�,���,���

$ 18,152,306 $ ��,���,���

NET ASSETS 資產淨值 $ 145,493,944 $ ���,���,���

Representing:

Retained profits

♏表

保留溢利 $ 145,493,944 $ ��,���,���

�� 儗⪝⺚╯靸ⳉ敻媲辑（箜）

�� 䡽舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼塛䇗䈲
䄖ꯓ⛜⛙㶉儔榟䷞氳⟣銬亏嶗
⯞⹖鎃ꄄ⺎耉榣榟氳䏆ꮷ

䡽舘儗財務報表⮍氪仼僿꺞僎銷䅨⪝僎
䄖ꯓ⛜亦䡽舘 ���� 䇗 �� 僖 �� 仼塛䇗䈲㶉
儔榟䷞◱扝㏇儗財務報表䫑硱氳㛡ꯁ亏嶗
⯞䡝⟣銬嶗⯞

儗꥘㎯塜鍑⚽鎊璣氪㷤亦꺙埠䟕榫僿ꝴꯏ僿
䅸✿氳䏆ꮷ鲄☬儗꥘㎯鏂憡䫑硱鎊璣⟣
銬⹖亏嶗⯞┘㛻⺎耉㵴綜合財務報表榣榟ꄆ
㛻䏆ꮷ

��  Company-level statement of financial position

 (continued)

�� Possible impact of amendments, new 
standards and interpretations issued but 
not yet effective for the year ended ��
December ����
Up to the date of issue of these f inancia l  statements, 

the HKICPA has issued a number of  new or amended 

standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended ��
December ���� and which have not been adopted in these 

financial statements. 

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of 

what the impact of these developments is expected to be 

in the period of init ial application. So far the Group has 

concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a 

significant impact on the Consolidated financial statements.

CHENG Siu Hong 

龢㵸䉖
Director

蝕◄

CHAN Sai Ming

ꢷ碸伺
Chairman

╚䅫

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors 

on  �� April ����.
蝕◄僎亦 ���� 䇗 � 僖 �� 仼劭⬢┾錊⺎氪⭴
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